

SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT



Community Policing & Problem-Solving Manual

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	3
Topics:	Pages:
.....	3
INTRODUCTION	4
Vision	5
Community Policing Values	6
Objectives	6
How Lieutenants Contribute to Community Policing Efforts	13
How Station Captains Contribute to Community Policing Efforts	14
How CED and its Commanding Officer Contributes to Community Policing	15
How the Operations Bureau Contributes to Community Policing Efforts	22
SECTION II: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT DIVISION (CED) EVENTS AND PROGRAMS	24
The following programs are managed by CED	24
Youth and Community Engagement Unit (YCEU)	24
Community Liaison Unit (CLU)&	24
Community Liaison Officer (CLO)	24
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) & Language Access Liaison	25
Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum (CCPAF)	25
Auxiliary Law Enforcement Response Team (ALERT)	25
SFPD Cadet Program	25
Reserve Police Officer Program	26
Neighborhood Safety Team (NST)	26
Community Ambassador Program	26
Pink Patch Project	27
Safe Place Program	27
Community Police Academy	27
The following programs and activities are supported by CED	
Town Hall Meetings – Officer /involved Shooting (OIS)	27
Community Police Advisory Boards (CPABs)	28
District Station Community Engagement Activities	28
Community Policing Problem-Solving Strategy	32
Community Policing Tracking and Action Items/Issues Raised Forms	35
SECTION IV: COMMUNITY POLICING REVIEW COMMITTEES	37
SECTION V: DATA COLLECTION, METRICS, AND SURVEYS	39
REFERENCES	40
APPENDIX	42
Appendix A	43
Appendix B	S.A.R.A. Problem-Solving Process
Appendix C	Administration Form - Problem-Solving Intake Form
.....	45



San Francisco Police Department Community Engagement Division and Contributing Members

~~Assistant Chief David Lazar, Chief of Operations~~

~~Acting Commander Arran Pera, Community Engagement Division~~

~~Retired Captain Jason Cherniss, San Francisco Police Department~~

~~Sergeant Torrie Grady, Field Operations Bureau—Patrol~~

~~Sergeant Chandra Peregrina, Professional Standards & Principled Policing Unit~~

~~Officer Jesus Nevarez, Professional Standards & Principled Policing Unit~~

~~Officer Jimmy Tran, Professional Standards & Principled Policing Unit~~

~~For more information, please contact:~~

~~SFPD Community Engagement Division~~

~~sfpdcommunityrelations@sfgov.org~~

Table of Contents

Topics: _____ **Pages:**

➤ Introduction	1
➤ Mission	2
➤ Vision	3
➤ Community Policing Values	4
➤ Objectives	5-8
➤ Officers Responsibilities	9-10
➤ Sergeants Responsibilities	11-12
➤ Lieutenants Responsibilities	13-14
➤ Captains Responsibilities	15-16
➤ Directors Responsibilities	17-19
➤ Investigation Bureau	20-21
➤ Administration Bureau	22-23

INTRODUCTION

Introduction

~~Community Policing and Problem-Solving~~ **Community Policing and Problem-Solving** is the cornerstone of the operational philosophy of the San Francisco Police Department. This manual establishes the key elements of ~~Community Policing and Problem-Solving~~ **Community Policing and Problem-Solving** by utilizing the Six Pillars of 21st Century Policing and the Four Tenants of Procedural Justice.

~~Community Policing is a~~ **Community Policing is a** ~~our~~ **organizational** philosophy, a management tool, and ~~an~~ **organizational** ~~is a~~ strategy, which promotes ~~a cooperative partnership between police officers and~~ **of policing that focuses on building relationships and working closely with** members of the ~~communities they serve~~ **community**. The ~~common~~ **central** goal is ~~to resolve problems and improve the overall sense of safety and security.~~ **The of Community Policing is for the police to build relationships with the community. This is done through interaction and collaboration with local city agencies, nonprofit organizations, community agencies and members of the public by creating partnerships and strategies for reducing crime and disorder. The San Francisco Police Department recognizes the partnership with the community and embraces the sharing of ideas, programs, and participation, which are a product of working together to achieve a common goal. Community Policing should be promoted throughout every Bureau, District Station, Unit, and Detail. Plans should be developed, and in line with the Department's Community Policing Strategic Plan.**

~~The Department's~~ **Community Policing Strategic Plan** is ~~an interactive process between police officers and the citizens who work and live in the neighborhoods patrolled. It is results oriented rather than incident driven, providing a strategy to buttress a community's ability to produce and maintain attractive and safe neighborhoods.~~ **product of the San Francisco Police Department's Community Engagement Division, in partnership with the City Performance Team of the San Francisco Controller's Office and the community. It is to be used to guide SFPD policy, training, and day-to-day operations of the department and improve relationships with San Francisco residents and visitors. The Community Policing Strategic Plan was developed by an Executive Sponsor Working group (ESWG) comprised of community members and SFPD personnel. This plan addresses recommendation 40.1 made by the U.S. DOJ Office of Community Oriented Policing to the San Francisco Police Department.**

The SFPD collaborated with the newly convened Strategic Steering Committee to draft a new Community Policing and Problem-Solving Manual. This collaboration utilized the framework provided by DGO 1.08, "Strategy 1.0", and the Community Policing Strategic Plan, while drafting this manual. Additionally, the spirit of the Six Pillars of 21st Century Policing and the Four Tenants of Procedural Justice were endorsed throughout this manual. Completion of this revised manual addresses recommendation 41.1 made by the U.S. DOJ Office of Community Oriented Policing to the San Francisco Police Department.

Police officers, in addition to their law enforcement role, become managers of their beats/sectors and are encouraged to engage in responsible and creative ways to bring about problem resolution.

Community Policing is both a philosophy and an organizational strategy that allows the police and the community to work closely together in new ways to solve the problems of crime, fear of crime, physical and social disorder, and neighborhood decay. Community Policing and Problem Solving give reality to the historic tradition that the police are the public and the public are the police.

Mission

The mission interactive process of the San Francisco Police Department is to protect life and property, work closely with the community by forming partnerships to prevent crime, reduce the fear of crime, apprehend those who commit crimes, and provide a safe environment. This is accomplished by being attentive to the needs of the residents, merchants, and visitors of the City, and by working collaboratively to solve neighborhood problems.

Vision

The San Francisco Police Department envisions working in conjunction with members of all communities to reduce the incidence of crime through prevention, education, and apprehension of those responsible for crimes. The police / community partnership will create an enhanced sense of safety and security through cooperative efforts to identify activity which leads to crime. The prompt and timely coordination of governmental and community based services to sustain order maintenance is essential to the process. Long term planning and district based initiatives designed to deliver the resources and services to communities will be the result of a partnership based on respect, commitment, and trust.

Community Policing Values

1. Maintain a respectful and courteous partnership, where the police and communities share ideas, share differences, and find a common ground to achieve what needs to be done.
2. Continuous, open and honest communication must be maintained between the police and the community. Listening without judgment, assessment without bias, and response with compassion, must occur to keep the lines of communication open.
3. Strong leadership must be demonstrated by the Police Department, by civic leaders, and by community representatives. Leaders who are fair minded, empathetic, understanding, and determined, will have the greatest success.
4. Leaders of the Police Department, civic leaders and community representatives must not seek their own personal agenda; they must work on what is best for the community as a whole.
5. Respect for self and others must be encouraged and practiced, while maintaining a high level of responsibility and accountability for all officers and community members alike.
6. Long term results are the goal. Short term needs may be necessary to reach long term sustainable results, not quick fixes or “band aid” solutions. Quick fixes and “band aid” solutions always require more attention and more resources at a later time.
7. Police officers and community members must be equipped with all resources necessary to accomplish their objectives. Adequate time, personnel (both police and community), equipment, and training are necessary for all involved.
8. Information from all available sources must be shared and evaluated. The use of crime data, citizen observations, and analysis of events all contribute to the prevention of crimes, apprehension of criminals and education of police officers and community alike.

Objectives

1. Establish a working relationship / partnership between police officers and members of all communities.
 - Conduct outreach efforts through all members of the Police Department.

- ~~Patrol officers and investigators will be available to meet with and coordinate assistance on a 24 hours a day 7 days a week basis.~~
- ~~Focused efforts will be made to encourage those communities who in the past have been less actively involved with community policing efforts, i.e.: communities who mistrust, fear, or do not have confidence in police services. Members include: at risk youths, recent immigrants, crime victims, and public housing residents.~~
- ~~Focus on getting officers out of the radio cars during their shifts, so they can develop a working relationship with the members of the community they serve.~~

~~2. Establish a partnership with all City Departments to address needs for City services as identified through Police Community Partnership process.~~

- ~~All officers who become aware of needs, criminal or non-criminal, which should be addressed by City Departments, will make a written request through the Director of Community Policing at the Field Operations Bureau, by utilizing SFPD Form #509.~~
- ~~The Director of Community Policing will act as a liaison with all department heads to facilitate the delivery of services.~~

~~3. Maintain an open and transparent partnership, by which police officers and community members share information, discuss community concerns, and identify the cause of problems that contribute to crime. This partnership must be built on mutual respect and trust.~~

- ~~The community will advise the Department on concerns or perceptions they have on police protocol and procedures. The Department will educate the community on police protocol. The community needs to know why police officers handle certain situations in a particular manner.~~
- ~~Officers and investigators will treat all community members with respect, regardless of the background of the community they serve.~~
- ~~The Department will make the community aware of what is occurring in their geographical area by circulating the information in district station captain's newsletters, district station's e-mail, community newsletters, community newspapers, and during community meetings.~~
- ~~Police officers will attend community meetings and be prepared to speak with the community they serve. This will allow the community to become more familiar with the officers serving them and allow the officers to become more familiar with the community they serve. This interaction will establish relationships / partnerships.~~
- ~~Expand the accessibility of the district station captains by ensuring community members are aware of the captain's phone number, e-mail address, and monthly community forum.~~

- ~~The Department, through the district station captain's newsletters and Community Policing component on the Departments Web Site, will promote Community Policing Programs and provide information to those community members interested in participating.~~

~~Examples:~~

- ~~a. Youth activities.~~
- ~~b. Senior services.~~
- ~~c. Crime prevention / education, utilizing Safety Awareness For Everyone (SAFE).~~
- ~~d. Crime awareness.~~
- ~~e. Drug awareness and education.~~
- ~~f. Police resources.~~
- ~~g. Community courts.~~

~~Employee Recognition Report on SFPD Web Site~~

~~4. Identify the causes of the problems that contribute to crime, reduce the incidence of crime, increase the sense of safety and security.~~

- ~~Officers will listen to concerns of the community and take the appropriate measures to address their concerns.~~
- ~~Officers will identify the problem. If the problem is of criminal nature the _____ officers will address the problem by using the **SARA (Scanning, Analysis, Response, and Assessment)** problem solving strategy. Officers will~~

~~_____ Complete SFPD Form #509 and submit the form to their Platoon or Watch Commander. If the problem does not require Police Department involvement, officers will complete SFPD Form #509 and submit the form to their Platoon or Watch Commander. The Platoon or Watch Commander will forward the SFPD Form #509 to the Director of Community Policing. The Director of Community Policing will forward the information to the proper governmental agency.~~

- ~~Officers will keep the community informed of the progress of their problem solving strategy, by addressing the community individually and at community meetings.~~
- ~~Officers will keep a record of their progress in chronological order, and submit a record of their progress to their commanding officer. If they are unsuccessful they will start over with a new **SARA** problem solving strategy. The problem must be solved, not pushed to a different location. Ignoring or displacing a problem does~~

not solve the problem, and is not acceptable. The SFPD form #43, SARA Problem Solving Worksheet, must be completed.

- ~~Community Policing Lieutenants and the Director of Community Policing will work closely with the Community Partnership For Safer Neighborhoods (CPSN), to insure that the community is connected to the proper agency that can assist them with their particular need.~~

5. ~~District station Commanding Officers and the Director of Community Policing will establish a continuous working partnership with community based organizations.~~

- ~~They will meet on a regular basis with neighborhood outreach workers to share information and coordinate participation in community meetings.~~
- ~~The Director of Community Policing will participate with the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice (MOCJ), and the Community Partnership For Safer Neighborhoods (CPSN) to identify the roles, duties, and responsibilities that each neighborhood outreach worker will have in addressing the issues raised by community members.~~

6. ~~Train all managers, supervisors, inspectors, and officers in updates of community policing concepts.~~

- ~~Develop a training lesson plan for training recruits at the Police Academy.~~
- ~~Develop a training lesson plan for training of all non-probationary officers attending Continuous Professional Training (CPT). All training shall be continuous.~~
- ~~Police officers to receive training on available governmental and private resources.~~

7. ~~Measure the level of citizen satisfaction with services provided by police — officers.~~

- ~~Develop a standard customer service survey to be provided to members of the community who report crimes. Develop a standard for distribution by utilizing a person's e-mail to send a survey. It will be measured by electronically sending out an e-mail and receipt of the response. This response will be reviewed to improve future performance.~~

Patrol and Foot Beat Officers

SECTION 1: COMMUNITY POLICING ROLES

How Patrol, Foot Beat, and Bicycle Officers Contribute to Community Policing Efforts

Pursuant to DGO 1.08 Community Policing, all members shall embody the following values in their work: respect, Partnership, Honesty and transparency, Responsibility and Accountability. Officers' spirit and work should be guided by a guardian mindset philosophy that is rooted in empathy, understanding, and mutual respect. It is the responsibility of members to partner and engage with community members and organizations to collaboratively identify and problem-solve local problems/issues and increase safety for residents, visitors, and officers. ~~The primary job of a police officer is to deliver service to the community he/she serves. Because police officers are in all communities all day, every day, they are often times the first to recognize or be approached with problems affecting a community. Properly identifying the problem and securing the services of the appropriate public and private agencies to provide long term resolution to the problem is a basic function of crime prevention, control and order maintenance.~~

~~A core element of community policing is the utilization of beat patrol officers who walk the neighborhoods. Unlike traditional officers who may have a lesser connection with the people within the neighborhoods they patrol, community policing beat patrol officers get out of their cars and proactively engage community members throughout the neighborhood to become familiar and personable with residents and merchants. They also develop a keen awareness of neighborhood patterns, and become deeply familiar with issues block by block.~~

As outlined in DGO 1.08, the following goals are to be embraced in order to build strong relationships with the communities we serve:

- Communication
- Education
- Problem Solving
- Relationship Building
- SFPD Organization

~~By using the following guideline, officers will be able to address most issues, which affect communities and resolve them to the satisfaction of the community, and relieve officers of having to deal with chronic complaints and excessive calls for service.~~

- ~~Identify and analyze the principal crime, and order maintenance problems within an area, and design strategies to address chronic problems by utilizing the SARA problem solving strategy, or those, which use an inordinate amount of police and or public services.~~
- ~~Attempt to identify primary causes of crime and or order maintenance, i.e. graffiti, large amounts of litter, abandoned properties, etc.~~

- ~~Conduct outreach either directly or through Safety Neighborhood Partnership outreach workers to residential and business communities as well as civic, social, cultural and religious groups.~~
- ~~Have a working knowledge of community leaders, business and merchant associations, and citizen contacts to call upon as resources in your efforts at attaining long term solutions to community problems.~~
- ~~Actively address neighborhood problems, (crime, quality of life, overall sense of safety) which are having a negative affect on a segment of the community.~~
- ~~Utilize the multitude of public and private agencies in the long term resolution of the problem. Be sure to follow up with the agencies you use to assist and make sure they are doing what is expected of them.~~
- ~~Communication is important. Be open and communicate freely about problems in your district, not only with other officers, but with community members and seek their input and ideas on ways to resolve the problems.~~
- ~~Actively work with innovative as well as traditional means of policing to address crime and order maintenance problems in your district.~~

Sergeants / Field Supervisors

How Sergeants Contribute to Community Policing Efforts

Patrol Sergeants / Field Supervisors shall reinforce the Department's commitment to deliver the highest level of service to the communities we serve. Recognize **should recognize and acknowledge** those Officers who ~~do a good job of delivering that service through their efforts, or by excel~~ at working collaboratively with the community and in conjunction with other resource agencies. Express the city resources, to problem-solve local problems and increase safety for residents, visitors, and officers. This recognition of a job well done in should be expressed in Performance Improvement Program (PIP) evaluations, **. Sergeants should recognize officers through commendations, award nominations, awards (Crisis Intervention Team Award, Community Policing & Problem-Solving Award, and Officer of the Month/Year Award)** and by taking the time to personally inform the **acknowledge an** officer of your awareness of the **when they are doing** outstanding work ~~they are doing~~.

Examples of how Sergeants can directly impact the Department's community policing goals:

- Allow Officers the time to participate in community engagement activities as time/staffing permits.
- Assist officers in time management and scheduling to devote time necessary to address community issues and for problem solving strategies.
- Emphasize and encourage long-term collaborative effort for community problem solving as the primary method of reducing crime, creating an enhanced sense of safety and security and order maintenance in the community.
- ~~Emphasize and encourage innovation, creativity, as well as traditional means of policing to address community problems.~~
- ~~Continuously evaluate and modify efforts, as necessary, to resolve problems and assure long term results.~~
- Utilize ~~Analyze data from community surveys and Comp Stats to formulate Crime Strategies.~~
- Apply the knowledge, skills, and abilities of Officers and community members alike, to develop strategies to address problems and identifying ~~identify~~ resources available to help the process.
- Encourage Officers to explore innovative, creative, as well as traditional means, to address community problems and/or issues.
- Have a working knowledge of city agencies/resources, community groups, community leaders, business and merchant associations and citizen contacts to call upon as resources in your efforts at attaining long term solutions to community problems. ~~activist groups, etc.~~
- ~~Emphasize problem solving as a primary means of producing long term results to community problems.~~
- ~~Discuss possible solutions to problems with officers and community members alike.~~
- ~~Know where to find the resources necessary to assist the patrol officers in their efforts to resolve community problems. Assist the officers in obtaining the internal, as well as external resources needed.~~
- ~~Ensure~~ ~~Assure Officers~~ that officers ~~they~~ have adequate resources to assist them in delivering service ~~with attaining long-term solutions~~ to the community in the form of long term problem resolution.
- Assist the officers by trying to find ways of freeing them from some duties so they are better able to devote the time necessary to addressing community ~~problems and/or~~ issues.
- Sergeants are responsible to continuously evaluate and modify efforts, as necessary, to resolve problems/issues assuring long-term results.
- Provide positive and constructive feedback to Officers ~~who are working at long term problem resolution on behalf of the community.~~ as a way of review, acknowledgement, and improvement.

How Lieutenants Contribute to Community Policing Efforts

The role of the Lieutenant is pivotal in that the position is one of liaison, in part, is to serve as a manager and identify problems within a district that need community policing solutions. The Lieutenant sets the example for Sergeants and Officers.

Examples of how Lieutenants can directly impact the Department's community policing goals:

- Work with all parties participating in the Community Policing Partnership Initiative. They must be supportive of the model, its concepts, and philosophy in order for it to succeed. The lieutenant is the manager of the local organizations and individuals as liaisons between officers on his/her watch and the community by acting as the point of contact with the community members of the police district station.
- Act as the liaison for the Police Department in all matters of Community Policing Partnership.
- Attend meetings of community meetings, neighborhood meetings, business meetings, and all other organizations organizational meetings, when possible, to provide mutual communication regarding issues occurring in your respective police their district.
- Review all assessments completed by members of your unit and contact Emphasize the Director of Community Policing to obtain updated information on the status of submitted assessments.
- Act as liaison with outreach workers from Community Partnership for Safer Neighborhoods and other importance of community groups to maintain a sense of issues which are of concern to the community members.
- Emphasize problem solving through "situational assessment" by all officers on your watch.
- Emphasize policing and customer service to the officers you manage and at daily line-ups through roll call training, placing emphasis on the Principles of Procedural Justice and the Pillars of 21st Century Policing.
- Encourage innovation and creativity on their the Officers part in their efforts towards long-term problem resolution solving resolutions.
- Support the Provide support to Sergeants and Officers in their efforts to address community concerns by providing allowing the time and resources necessary for positive results.
- Review, evaluate and recognize the good work done by officers of the watch.
- Maintain open and frequent communication with officers Sergeants, Officers, and citizens alike the community to remain informed and assure all are updated on current issues.

- ~~Promote the Department's mission, values, and goals.~~
- ~~Assign subordinates to the same sector or beat on a daily basis.~~
- ~~Try to find "work load reduction strategies" to give your personnel more time to devote to community policing.~~
- ~~Update your commanding officer regarding the process of implemented community policing programs.~~
 - Review Community Policing and Problem-Solving projects and assessments to provide any necessary status updates to Commanding and/or Commission Officers.
 - Manage and audit Community Policing Problem-Solving efforts for status updates, review, and improvement.

Captains

How Station Captains Contribute to Community Policing Efforts

The Station Captain ~~The commanding officer of a police district shares in the success and failures of the officers they command. Equally sharing in those attributes are the members of the various communities located in the police district. The commanding officer is a very important part of building and strengthening the Community Policing Partnership Initiative, as they~~ **and Problem-Solving initiatives and should** work directly with the ~~Community Policing Lieutenants, and the members of all communities in the district. Commanding officers~~ **Sergeants, city agencies, and representatives from the community. Station Captains** must remain actively involved and informed ~~as to on~~ all aspects of the Community Policing Partnership activities **and Problem-Solving efforts** occurring in their districts. ~~Those who put forth the effort and commitment will share success with the officers under their command and the community members they serve.~~ **Problem-Solving efforts should contain strategies to create trust, value, and unity for all parties involved.**

Examples of how Captains can directly impact the Department's community policing goals:

- ~~Emphasize customer service approach towards the community and your employees.~~
- **Acknowledge that community policing problem-solving only works if all parties involved believe in the process.**
- ~~Encourage and assist the Community Policing Lieutenants with their pivotal role.~~
- **Proactively reach out to partners in relevant organizations**
- **Consult with District Community Police Advisory Boards (CPAB's),**
- **Acknowledge, review and utilize community feedback from various sources such as emails, and community meetings.**
- **Designate a Community Liaison Officer (CLO) that serves as a liaison between CED, the Captain, and the community to help coordinate and track Community Policing and Problem-Solving efforts.**

- Regularly evaluate the performance of all officers under your command as it pertains to Community Policing Partnership activities.
 - Ensure that Community Policing and Problem-Solving efforts are publicized via social media, websites, newsletters, video messaging, etc.
- Prepare a quarterly report explaining what specific actions occurred in their district.

Examples:

- a. 509 report.
- b. Newsletters written.
- c. Training administered to officers.
- d. Community meetings attended.
- e. Articles placed on the Department's Web Site.
- f. Community events and programs that officers participated in.
- Maintain open and frequent communication with all officers, a working knowledge of available resources, and community members alike to remain informed and assure all are updated on community issues and partnerships.
- Reinforce the commitment of the Department to work with community members to; resolve issues of concern, maintain order, reduce crime, and enhance the sense of safety and security of community members.
- Support the Officers in their efforts to address community concerns by providing the time and resources necessary for positive results when feasible.
- Maintain a good working knowledge of available resources.
- De-emphasize traditional indicators of performance which stress quantity and not quality.
- Try to find "work load reduction strategies" to give your personnel more time to devote to community policing.
- Encourage and acknowledge Officers Community Policing and Problem-Solving efforts, successes, and seek input/feedback from Officers for review and improvement.
- Ensure that Community Policing efforts are logged, tracked, and evaluated as part of the evaluation process.
- Ensure that community surveys are being conducted for community engagement and Community Policing and Problem-Solving efforts to measure effectiveness.
- Ensure that the data collected is formulated in a community policing annual report.
- Encourage and praise your subordinates' efforts and successes.
- Seek employees' input and provide feedback on how it was used.

How CED and its Commanding Officer Contributes to Community Policing

Director of Community Policing

The Director of Community Policing acts as the liaison for the Police Department with the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice, the Mayor's Office of Neighborhood Services, Safety Network, Community Partnership for Safer Neighborhoods, and various public agencies, organizations, and associations participating in the Community Partnership for Safe Neighborhoods Program.

The Community Engagement Division (CED) shall be structured around the Department's Community Policing Vision, Values, Goals, and Objectives and shall provide Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving support to the Department.

Examples of how CED contributes to the Department's community policing goals:

- Provide the overall Department structure and framework to enhance community relationships in our city.
- Members assigned to CED will work collectively to support the effort of all District Stations, Bureaus, and Units in the Department by promoting community policing and community engagement policies, procedures, and practices.
- Provide the necessary structure and support so that the entire Department may accomplish community policing goals.
- Hosting many community engagement events and programs.
- Partner with the Department's Media Relations Unit (MRU) to provide information to the community.

One of the primary roles of the Director is that of a "clearinghouse" for all assessment forms submitted by the Police Department and by outreach workers of Community Partnership for Safer Neighborhoods. Working full commitment of the Mayor's Office, the Chief of Police, and various community participants, the Director will engage the services of those agencies necessary to address community problems. In order to bring resolution to community problems the Director: Pursuant to DGO 1.08, the CED Commander is responsible for promoting and auditing Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving concepts and efforts throughout the entire Department. The commander may also be expected to do the following:

- ~~Will report directly the commander of Field Operations Bureau.~~
- ~~Will m~~Meet regularly with the Chief of Police, the DC of Field Operations Bureau, and the Director of MOCJ, on a regularly scheduled, bi-weekly basis in order Media Relations to update them on progress being made strategize on community policing initiatives, to seek their input, and to report any concerns or recommendations. and efforts.
- At the request of the Direct, the chief, and the Director of MOCJ will meet to discuss the progress of community policing efforts.
- Manage and facilitate the Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum (CCPAF), which reviews, audits, and promotes the Departments community policing efforts.
- ~~Will~~ Work in partnership with the training division to assist in the development of community policing training curriculum.
- Will attend the Community Partnership for Safer Neighborhoods meetings, and assist the groups to ensure that the needs and concerns of their community are being addressed.

- Will ~~a~~Attend community-based organization meetings to ensure their needs and concerns have been addressed ~~and keep the community updated.~~
- ~~Will review and evaluate submitted assessment forms and determine which are police related issues or non-police related issues. Forward all non-police related issues to the Director of MONS for the delivery of services by the agencies deemed necessary to provide long term resolution to the specific problem.~~
- ~~Will Regularly review the status of the public safety and quality of life assessments. Keep an open line of communications with the district stations Community Policing Lieutenants and Director of MONS, to assure every effort is being made to promptly and efficiently provide the services needed to resolve the problem.~~
- ~~Will work closely with the various community-based organizations to ensure they are meeting specified criteria for community policing and crime prevention and verify that they are assisting in each district based strategy.~~
- ~~Will act as a liaison with the commanding officers and community policing lieutenants at district stations, to provide updates on matters submitted, or to obtain additional information to facilitate the needs of cooperating agencies.~~
- ~~Will meet with all forty district Community Policing Lieutenants on a regular basis to discuss the success of community policing efforts and initiatives and how they can be improved.~~
- ~~Will produce a quarterly report identifying the district station, the number of assessment forms received, those in progress, and the number closed.~~
- ~~Will send "Community Satisfaction Surveys" to those individuals, groups, and organizations that have requested assistance through the Community Partnership for Safe Neighborhoods Program.~~
- ~~May have offices both at the Hall of Justice and City Hall, Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice.~~
- • Will be responsible for ~~r~~Reviewing existing departmental documentation (e.g., community policing manuals, ~~bulletins~~ ~~notices~~, worksheets, resource cards, etc.) and make specific recommendations as to what changes, ~~updating~~ and the like ~~updates~~ are needed to make them more current, ~~deemed~~ relevant, and helpful.
- ~~Will work in partnership with the Training Division to assist the 40 assigned community policing lieutenants that are liaisons to the community and have responsibility for implementing the community policing policies, procedures, programs and training. District station captains will ensure that these lieutenants oversee the training curriculum for all police officers assigned to their command in their respective districts. They serve as the direct connection between the community and the district stations and are culturally trained and sensitive to each individual neighborhood.~~
- ~~Will work in partnership with the Training Division to develop, update and review community policing training procedures for new recruits and all existing police officers through ongoing in-service training and roll call training. This will serve as a tool to~~

inform police officers throughout the City of new community policing policies and initiatives.

- ~~Will work with various entities, both inside and outside the Department, to increase the participation of all communities and non-profit agencies.~~
- ~~Will arrange and facilitate quarterly meetings with the district station captains, the community organizers, and all 40 community policing lieutenants. These meetings will also include a member of the SFPD Command Staff (Field Operations Bureau) and the Director of the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice. These meetings, which will rotate among the various district station community rooms, are intended to serve as a forum to discuss best practices, give district updates, share information and keep everyone engaged and create accountability.~~
- ~~As a representative of the Chief of Police, and with members of the Mayor's Office of Criminal Justice, will attend weekly meetings with the African American Community Police Relations Board and its coalition and collaborative partners to provide updates. These meetings will be limited to one hour in length and be preceded by a formal written agenda delivered in advance of the meeting. The frequency of these meetings will be adjusted by mutual agreement between the Chief of Police, AACPRB, and MOCJ.~~
- ~~Will participate in district station planning sessions involving the SFPD, community organizers, and the community. The goal of these planning sessions is to build a comprehensive plan which will begin with a framework of 5 issues. These issues are: beat patrol schedule and strategy; public health response in the aftermath of violent crime; neighborhood needs assessment; communication protocol; and updated training documents~~
- ~~Will work with all members of all Bureaus of the Department to develop a process whereby each member, at all ranks will participate in training and orientation regarding cultural competence and community policing. Each participant will receive a certificate verifying his or her participation in the training. Culturally competent community policing strategies will be incorporated into all activities of the Police Department.~~
- Manage the community engagement process set forth in SF Admin Code 96I.1(a).

Investigations Bureau

It is important for the inspectors in the Investigations Bureau and the officers in the Field Operations Bureau to interact. Purposeful interaction will result in the attainment of a consensus regarding service delivery expectations.

Investigations shall:

- ~~Develop a knowledge base about crime thereby becoming an expert about criminal activity within a given community.~~

- ~~Act as a liaison with crime analysts regarding the existence of crime problems —and the frequency of their occurrence.~~
- ~~Become the neighborhood crime coordinator by tracking criminal trends, investigating and closing cases. Liaison with patrol officers and the community regarding criminal activity and intelligence.~~
- ~~Assist patrol officers in conducting comprehensive initial investigations, limited follow-up investigations and case closures.~~
- ~~Conduct investigations into criminal activity within an assigned community, assist and coordinate criminal investigations with other investigators.~~
- ~~Structure investigative methods to be based on a team approach, consisting of the investigator, the patrol officer, the patrol supervisor and the community.~~
- ~~Support and promote the concept of community policing within the Department and the community.~~
- ~~Champion the Department and promote its organizational mission, values and goals.~~
- ~~Support Field Operations Bureau in its efforts to building and strengthening the Community Policing Partnership Initiative.~~
- ~~Develop “work load reduction strategies” to give members more time to devote to community policing.~~
- ~~Maintain a working knowledge of the community policing philosophy, goals, objectives, and programs.~~
- ~~Maintain involvement as a valued part of the community policing team.~~
- ~~Maintain a working knowledge of the resources available within the Department and other government agencies.~~
- ~~Maintain a working knowledge of the resources available within the community.~~
- ~~Locate and organize resources required to implement solutions.~~
- ~~Adopt a customer service approach to performing your duties for internal and external customers.~~
- ~~Work with all employees and citizens to solve community problems.~~
- ~~Use the SARA problem-solving techniques to create innovative solutions.~~
- ~~Share information with other members of the Department for the purpose of solving crimes.~~
- ~~Monitor involvement by non-Departmental resources and follow through to ensure satisfactory results.~~
- ~~If it is necessary to refer a citizen/victim, make the **first** referral the **correct** referral.~~
- ~~Be willing to evaluate and improve your performance.~~
- ~~Provide suggestions on ways to prevent crime by analyzing crime trends and developing a strategy to prevent future crimes of a similar nature from occurring.~~

Administration Bureau

How the Administration Bureau Contributes to Community Policing Efforts

Community Policing is not just a “patrol” oriented philosophy. It is a fundamental change in the policing philosophy of the entire Department. In order to achieve our community policing goals, the assistance of all Department members is needed.

Certain units under the Administration Bureau can directly impact Community Policing strategies by ensuring community policing values and concepts are integrated into training, recruitment, and professional development.

The division and Units listed below contribute to the Department's community policing goals in the following ways:

Crime Analysis:

- ~~Community Policing includes crime analysis and information management to provide a vehicle through which every member of the Department can efficiently manage the SARA Model and the Community Policing approach. The Department's Management Information Systems serves as a communications network for each officer within the Department.~~
- ~~Crime analysis and information management are interactive systems that aid in integrating operational efforts with identified problems through the efficient management of information. Beat officers and investigators have the capacity within this system to become managers of the communities they serve. It becomes their responsibility to use the systems to support neighborhood needs and commitments.~~

Cultural Competency:

- ~~The related and important notion of cultural competency is the subject of an additional twenty-eight hours of classroom instruction. Cultural Competency is imparted in presentations by representatives of seven distinct community groups, each of which is allotted either a two or four hour block of time. In these lectures officers are sensitized to the complex realities facing low-income communities, communities of color and other urban communities. The Department recognizes that without a deep understanding of the experiences, needs and challenges in these communities, it would be difficult to fully implement effective community policing strategies.~~

The Academy - Training Division:

- The Training Division will play a major role in **is to** developing and implementing training programs which will teach officers new skills and help them perform more proficiently. The training will also require focusing on unit training as well as individual training **that incorporate the concepts of the Six pillars of 21st Century Policing, Four Tenets of Procedural Justice, Community Policing, and problem-Solving, Academy Immersion Program, and Customer Service.** Unit training will be vital in assisting units in their responsibilities for addressing community problems and delivering appropriate services. In concert with unit training, individual skill training will reinforce the officer skills needed to effectively work within a unit.
- **Unit training is indispensable in assisting units in their responsibilities for addressing community problems/issues and delivering appropriate problem-solving solutions.**
- In concert with unit training, individual skill training will reinforce Officer's skills needed to effectively work within a unit.
- Train all participating Community ambassadors and document all training.
- Required on-going Community Policing training.

- All Department members (sworn and non-sworn/professional staff) shall attend Community Policing training every two years. This training shall be developed by the training Division in consultation with the Community Engagement Division and be a minimum of 2 hours in length. Training should include best practices in community policing, community engagement, customer service, and problem solving. Non-sworn/professional staff Department members are also required to receiving training in community policing.
- ~~The Training Division also will provide training on community policing to the Community and will continue as demonstrated in the Citizens Police Academy.~~

General Responsibilities:

- ~~Support and promote the concept of community policing within the Department and the community.~~
- ~~Champion the Department and promote its organizational mission, values, and goals.~~
- ~~Develop "work-load reduction strategies" to give members more time to devote to community policing.~~
- ~~Maintain a working knowledge of community policing philosophy, goals, objectives, and programs.~~
- ~~Maintain involvement as a valued part of the community policing team.~~
- ~~Maintain a working knowledge of resources available within the Police Department, other government, and private (non-profit) agencies.~~
- ~~Locate and organize resources required to implement solutions.~~
- ~~Adopt a customer service approach to performing your duties for internal and external customers.~~
- ~~Identify, analyze and develop strategies to address problems encountered in your working environment.~~
- ~~Work with all employees and citizens to solve community problems.~~
- ~~Use the SARA problem solving techniques to create innovative solutions.~~
- ~~Share information with other members of the Department.~~
- ~~Monitor involvement by non-Department resources and follow through to ensure satisfactory results.~~
- ~~If it is necessary to refer a citizen/victim, make the **first** referral the **correct** referral.~~
- ~~Be willing to evaluate and improve your performance.~~
- ~~Support the mission of Field Operations Bureau and Investigations Bureau personnel in their community policing approach to problem solving.~~

The Academy - Professional Development

The Department is dedicated to each member's professional development. To achieve professional and personal growth, SFPD offers opportunities in various assignments throughout all Bureaus. These opportunities are announced in Department Notices (DNs)

throughout the calendar year. In addition, the Professional Development Unit (PDU) disseminates a variety of internal and outside training opportunities to all members (via email). PDU ensures that in-service training opportunities are published in a monthly calendar that is posted on the Department's intranet site. DNs are published to facilitate on-going professional development, (Supervisory Leadership Institute, Command College, and SFPD Leadership Institute, etc.).

The SFPD supports every member's professional-personal development by providing opportunities in various assignments, and access to a wide variety of training coursework. The roles and responsibilities for SFPD Recruitment Unit are the following, but not limited to:

- Increase transparency amongst the members of the Department as to what assignments and training are valuable for professional-personal development.
- Explain the process of applying for a position opening.
- Explain the process to access internal-outside training.
- Recommend training and assignments, e.g., Plainclothes, Field Training Officer, Instructor Development Course / Academy Instructor, Sherman Block Supervisory Leadership Institute, and FBI National Academy.

Staff Services - Recruitment

The SFPD Recruitment Unit reviews best practices for recruitment, training, and outreach on an ongoing basis by attending trainings and compiling a resource library. The SFPD has initiated two extensive reviews of its hiring process and worked with the Office of Racial Equity to draft the *Racial Equity and Inclusion Action Plan (2020)*. SFPD also works closely with the Department of Human Resources' Diversity Equity and Inclusion Recruitment Team.

Studies suggest that having diverse officers in a police department can increase community trust and cooperation. The Recruitment Unit is tasked with finding ways to ensure that candidates reflect the diverse communities served by SFPD.

Examples of how the SFPD Recruitment Unit can contribute to Community Policing goals:

- Recruit individuals who are native to San Francisco and the Bay Area.
- Recruit multilingual individuals.
- Partner with local organizations to expand the candidate pool.
- Determine a recruiting metric to indicate the percentage of candidates that move forward and the reasons why
- Support underrepresented groups in the hiring process.
- Conduct specific outreach to underrepresented communities.
- Use internal diverse populations to recruit from underrepresented communities.
- Include non-sworn/professional staff perspective on hiring panels.

How the Operations Bureau Contributes to Community Policing Efforts

All Bureaus under Operations shall support and promote the Department's Community Policing Strategies by embodying the Department's Community Policing Vision, Values, Goals and Objectives.

Crime Strategies:

The Crime Strategies Division ensures that Community Policing and Problem-Solving data is collected and analyzed by the Crime Analysis Unit. The data collected shall be incorporated into the Department's Comp Stat process and utilized by District Station Captains and the Investigations Bureaus for crime strategies, problem solving, personnel deployment, and crime investigations.

Field Operations Bureau (FOB)

See page 4-7 of this Manual

Special Operations Bureau (SOB)

Examples of how SOB can support the Department's Community Policing goals:

- The Mounted Unit are some of the department's best ambassadors
- Specialized Units attend city events and remain visible to community members

Investigations Bureau

Examples of how the Investigations Bureau can support the Department's Community Policing goals:

- Work with the Crime Strategies Division Analyst to identify the existence of crime trends, the frequency of their occurrence, and develop strategies to prevent future crimes of similar nature from occurring.
- Utilize patrol Officers to work as community liaisons to obtain information regarding criminal activity and intelligence.
- Be mindful that every strategy should have an evaluation and review component to evaluate effectiveness of efforts and to assess areas for improvement.
- The results rendered from the evaluations and analysis should be used to assist investigators with investigations and closing cases.
- Investigators should seek face-to-face interactions with the community to establish relationships to help foster and build trust.
- Follow-up with victims of crime to provide information, additional services, service referrals, and if possible, collect additional information, which are examples of good customer service.
- Investigators should develop a transitional plan for when staff leaves an assignment. The plan should provide all parties with advance notice of staffing changes.
- When appropriate and within the purview of the Department, Investigators can help build trust and understanding in the community by providing explanations to community members relating to the status of the investigation.
- Investigators should acknowledge officers when they have completed an exemplary investigation and follow up with officers regarding outcome of cases.

Airport Bureau

This bureau assists travelers, enforces local, state, and federal laws and plays a key role in

the airport's capacity to respond to emergencies. This bureau may have the opportunity to serve as a first impression for many international and national visitors to this city.

SECTION II: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT DIVISION (CED) EVENTS AND PROGRAMS

The following programs are managed by CED

Youth and Community Engagement Unit

The SFPD has established policy and protocol for the assessment and development of youth programs in the Youth & Community Engagement Unit (YCEU) within the Community Engagement Division (CED). YCEU will champion the planning of youth programs with established partnerships to support youth within the community and serve to identify new partnerships for areas of expansion of programs geared towards supporting our youth and building trust in the community. YCEU program coordinators will work in partnership with community-based organizations, non-profits, and other city agencies to recruit youth into the programs. The programs consist of sports, arts, music, and job & career development which are focused on mentoring and strengthening relationships with youth in the community.

Community Liaison Unit

The primary focus of the Community Liaison Unit (CLU) is to gain the trust of San Francisco's diverse communities, improve reporting of crime, support victims and their families, and seek out information that leads to the resolution of hate crimes and prejudice-based incidents.

This team of officers are responsible for SFPD's tracking of prejudice-based incidents, identifying patterns, and intervention techniques and helping the community navigate the criminal justice system. CLU Officers serves as a liaison to San Francisco's diverse communities, including the Asian and Pacific Islander, African American, LGBTQ, Muslim, and Latino communities, communities with limited English proficiency and older San Franciscans. Additionally, the CLU and its officers assist and collaborate with the participants in the Safe Place Program.

Community Liaison Officer

District Station Captains shall appoint at least one Community Liaison Officer (CLO). This officer will serve as a liaison between the Community Engagement Division, the District Station Captain, and the Community. They will be responsible for planning community engagement events and for keeping the Community Engagement Division updated as to the implementation of their plan. In addition, the CLO will attend the Community Engagement Division's monthly CLO meeting.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) & Language Access Liaison

The purpose of LEP was to establish language access procedures, consistent with federal, state, and local law, for SFPD members to follow when encountering a limited English proficient (LEP) person. The LEP order (DGO 5.20) defines the importance of effective and accurate communication between SFPD members and the community they serve.

The San Francisco Police Department recognizes the importance of effective and accurate communication between its members and the diverse community it serves. It is the policy of this department to inform members of the public that language assistance services are available free of charge to LEP persons, and that the Department will provide these services to them as part of the department's community policing and enforcement efforts.

Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum

As a commitment to procedural justice, building trust and transparency with the community, and being inclusive to all members of the community, the Department has instituted the Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum (CCPAF). The CCPAF was created to expand community policing, problem-solving, and community engagement throughout the city to prevent and control crime and improve the quality of neighborhood life for all communities. CCPAF is a group of civilian volunteers from all the diverse residential and business communities of San Francisco. The vision of the CCPAF is to work closely with the San Francisco community members, key stakeholders, and the SFPD to build community-based strategies and create a safer City and County of San Francisco.

Auxiliary Law Enforcement Response Team (ALERT)

The Auxiliary Law Enforcement Response Team (ALERT) program is designed to train volunteers to assist Officers of the San Francisco Police Department in the execution of their duties. While primarily focused on preparing its volunteers to assist law enforcement after a disaster, the ALERT program provides a wide spectrum of training to its members. ALERT will function as an adjunct to a law enforcement presence. ALERT volunteers have no special law enforcement powers but may provide crucial support in the hours after a disaster. ALERT volunteers frequently assist the SFPD in areas outside the disaster arena such as security assistance at street festivals, sports events, and concerts as well traffic and pedestrian control for parades and political demonstrations. It is open to those who live, work, or attend school in San Francisco and must be at least 16 years of age or older.

SFPD Cadet Program

The San Francisco Police Department Cadet program is designed to provide a service for the City of San Francisco, the Police Department, and the Community that it serves. Police Cadets provide assistance to the San Francisco Police Department in many different ways, and they act as a liaison between the police and youth in our community. The goals of the Police Cadet program are to expose men and women to the various aspects of police work in order to prepare them for a career in law enforcement. The Police Cadet program helps to

provide quality candidates for all law enforcement related positions including, but not limited to: Police Officer, Community Police Services Aide or 911 Dispatcher.

Reserve Police Officer Program

The Police Reserve Officer Program is comprised of community members and retired Police Officers who wish to volunteer as a Reserve Police Officer. These Officers supplement the full-time Officers in a variety of duties throughout the Department. They patrol in vehicles, on foot patrols, or on bicycle patrols. Most Reserve Officers work with Officers, but others can qualify to patrol on their own.

A Reserve Police Officer performs general law enforcement duties, which includes street patrol, conducting preliminary police investigations, report writing, collision investigations, traffic control, issuance of citations, and other basic law enforcement functions. Reserve Officers are also utilized at special events such as parades, street fairs, or security for major sporting events.

Neighborhood Safety Team (NST)

San Francisco Police Department's Neighborhood Safety Team (NST), engages, educates, and empowers San Franciscans to build safer neighborhoods through crime prevention, education, and public safety that result in stronger, more vibrant, and resilient communities. NST's services provide people with tools, knowledge, and skills to help address and prevent crime and violence. Additionally, NST's services provide community members to become advocates for safety and wellness in their respective communities. Below is a list of services that are provided by the SFPD's NST:

- Coordinate Community Policing and Community Engagement Work
- Facilitate Neighborhood and Community Watch Groups
- Provide Residential Security Surveys and Presentations
- Provide Business Security Surveys and Presentations
- Provide Personal, Pedestrian, Vehicle, and Older Adult Safety Presentations
- Provide Child Safety Presentations
- Provide Workplace Violence Prevention Presentations
- Bicycle safety registration and presentations for bicycle theft prevention
- Participate in Special projects and Community Events

Community Ambassador Program

A Community Ambassador is a retired sworn member of the Department now serving as a non-sworn ambassador. A Community Ambassador serves in a supportive role to SFPD sworn members within a designated area of responsibility, provide a highly visible presence and deterrence to crime, and to assist in the reporting of crime to SFPD. The Community Ambassador Program is not designed to replace full-time Police Officer positions but to provide additional resources for the community. The Community

Ambassador will work in a non-sworn capacity, will not have Peace Officers powers, and are not authorized to use force.

Pink Patch Project

The Pink Patch Project is a public awareness campaign where law enforcement agencies around the United States use pink versions of their agencies' patches to encourage conversations with community members about breast cancer. By participating in the Pink Patch Project, law enforcement agencies help to increase awareness about breast cancer; raise funds for research in the areas of prevention, diagnosis, treatment and cure; and offer support and encouragement to those affected by the devastating disease.

Safe Place Program

The Safe Place Program is a collaborative effort between the San Francisco Police Department and merchants to create safe places where victims of hate crimes, prejudice-based incidents, or other crimes can find refuge and be connected with law enforcement and other services. The rainbow imagery of the Safe Place logo, while associated with the LGBTQ+ community, is a symbol of welcoming and acceptance for all regardless of race, age, sex, religion, national origin, disability, sexual orientation, or gender identity/expression. The SFPD will partner with participating merchants to place Safe Place stickers in the windows and will provide training on what to do if contacted by someone wishing to report a crime or in need of law enforcement assistance.

Community Police Academy

The SFPD Community Police Academy is a ten-week program open to members of the community and designed to provide an overview of SFPD structure and activities. Participants will learn about emergency communications, vehicle operations, bias training, and crisis intervention and may go on a ride-along with officers on patrol. The Community Police Academy is not part of the training one would need to become a police officer, nor does it provide academic credit. Instead, it is intended for community members to learn more about reducing crime, improving the quality of life in their neighborhoods, and building relationships with law enforcement personnel. In turn, the Community Police Academy provides an opportunity for officers to improve their understanding of the people they serve.

The following programs and activities are supported by CED

Town Hall Meetings – Officer /involved Shooting (OIS)

CED serves as a liaison between the Department and the family of the injured or deceased subject of an OIS and will contact the family as soon as practical after the incident. If held

in-person, the Language Access Liaison under CED ensures that there will be a certified speaking Officer for the specific language requested for the Hall meeting.

Community Police Advisory Boards (CPABs)

CED is responsible for assisting each district station by providing direction and resources to maintain a well-functioning CPAB. CED also assists the citywide CPAB Steering Committee. For more information, please refer to SFPD CPAB Manual - 24

Department Awards for Community-Oriented Policing/Problem-Solving

All Department members are eligible to receive these two awards:

- The Strategic Problem-Solving Award - Granted to a member for developing an original approach to solving a significant, ongoing problem in an effective way. The problem must be material and must relate to crime, disorder, or quality of life concerns.
- The Community Engagement Award - Granted to a member for developing a creative, innovative, original, and self-initiated community engagement project. The project must center on connecting the Department and its members with the community with the goal of building relationships and fostering trust. The project should be sustained for a duration of time and does not include limited or one-time actions.

For more information, see DGO 3.09 Department Awards.

District Station Community Engagement Activities

District Captains shall implement the following 14 minimum community engagement activities and report on them during Comp Stat meetings, and include each in each stations' yearly community policing engagement goal.

1. Weekly Newsletter
2. Annual National Night Out
3. Weekly Event Conference Call Update (Thursdays)
4. Academy Community Immersion Program
5. Coffee with a Cop
6. Featured Officer of the Month
7. Featured Citizen of the Month
8. Community Police Advisory Board
9. Monthly Community Engagement Budget Plan
10. Designation of a Community Liaison Officer
11. District Station Captains' Community Meetings
12. Station Social Media Requirement: Twitter, Facebook, and Website
13. Principal's Breakfast
14. Meet the Beat Events

Weekly Newsletter

- Every Station shall have a weekly newsletter.
- Newsletters shall be standardized and consistent in terms of content and order of the contents.
- The newsletter should not be more than 25 pages.
- Clip Arts are not allowed.
- A copy of the newsletter should be available on the station's website.
- Links to all newsletters should be available on SFPD main website.
- Every newsletter shall have the following:

Page 1

1. Station logo, SFPD logo, and/or station picture
2. Captain's Message
3. Information on upcoming Station Community Meetings
4. Link to the Chief's Message

Page 2

5. Officer of the Month
6. Citizen of the Month

The following items can be on any page but must be in the following order:

7. Definition of "suspicious activity"
8. Definition of "Community Policing"
9. Definition of "crimes"
10. Community engagement events, projects, and/or flyers
11. List of crimes
12. Plan to address crimes, including any tips from the community
13. Map of crimes
14. Comparisons of biannual crime maps (first week of January and first week of June)
15. Notable arrests and incidents of note
16. Monthly comparison of crimes (only the last newsletter of the week)
17. Summaries of Supreme Court case laws relevant to policing (published the first week of January, April, July, and October)
18. Relevant press releases
19. Advertisements for police programs (can be rotated throughout the month)
20. Feedback and comments from the community
21. CPAB updates (first week of the month)
22. The Station's vision and values statement
23. The Station's contact sheet

Annual National Night Out

National Night Out is a community police awareness raising event in the United States, held the first Tuesday of August. This event is meant to increase awareness about police programs in communities, such as drug prevention, town watch, neighborhood watch, and other anti-crime efforts. The events are typically organized by block watches, nonprofit and for-profit organizations, and local police departments. These events can be as simple as backyard cookouts to full-blown festivals with live music, food, entertainment, dancing, visits from emergency personnel (Police Fire, Paramedic), with safety demonstrations, exhibits and projects for all residents.

Weekly Event Conference Call Update (Thursdays)

This is a conference call with all the District Station Captains, FOB, and the Command Staff to outline weekly events to determine which events required participation at the station level. The purpose of this conference call is to bring informational awareness to the leaders of the department.

Academy Community Immersion Program

Academy Class is led by a facilitator on a visit to various San Francisco neighborhoods/communities. On these visits, the recruits learn about the culture/history and are exposed to the diversity of San Francisco. The recruit class is given the opportunity to meet and interact with community members on a more intimate level.

Coffee with a Cop

Coffee with a Cop is on a mission to improve trust building relationships - one cup of coffee at a time. This was a simple plan developed by the Hawthorne Police Department to break through the barriers that have been built over the years via a cup of coffee. In less than five years, Coffee with a Cop events have been hosted in all 50 states and is one of the most successful community policing programs across the country. The key to Coffee with a Cop growing success is that it opens the door for interaction outside of crisis situations that typically bring law enforcement officers and community members together.

Officer of the Month

Each District Station's Captain will choose an Officer(s) to feature in the weekly newsletter. This will include a short biography of the featured Officer(s) as well as the Officer(s) contributions and affiliation with the district station which will be printed along with a photo of the Officer(s) in the weekly newsletter.

Citizen of the Month

Each District Station Captain will choose a citizen/community to feature in the weekly newsletter. This can be someone in the community that you would like to recognize for their service or dedication to the community. It can also be a community member that you would just like to feature. The biography and photo of the citizen/community member will be printed in the weekly newsletter.

Monthly Community Engagement Budget Plan

Each District Station should have a monthly budget to fund monthly community engagement events at the station level. Each District Station Captain should ask the Community Liaison Officer to plan a yearly community engagement calendar emphasizing at least one community engagement event per month.

District Station Captains' Community Meetings

- District Station Captains Monthly Community Meetings
 - Each District Station Captain shall host a monthly community meeting in their station's community room or other designated location within the district. The community, as well as some City agencies, should be invited to these meetings. The objectives of these meetings are to engage with the community. To hear the concerns of the community and to give the community status updates on current events, crimes/arrest that may have occurred within their district. This is also an opportunity for the community and other City agencies to come together, hear each other's concerns, and to work together on problem-solving strategies and solutions.
- District Station Captains' Bi-Annual Community Meeting
 - To increase accountability, transparency and trust with the community, the Department has expanded its public education campaign by providing the community with information on 1) officer conduct within the framework of existing laws concerning the Peace Officer Bill of Rights Act, 2) the process for filing a commendation or complaint against an officer and 3) the Department's commitment to bias-free policing.

At least twice yearly, all District Station Captains shall dedicate a portion of a monthly community meeting to a discussion of 1) officer conduct, 2) the process for filing a commendation or complaint against an officer and 3) the Department's commitment to bias-free policing. Meetings shall be held in the months of March and August. Station captains shall also include the information presented at the meetings in their Captain's email newsletter to the community during the same months. (For further details please refer to FOB Bureau Order 20-03).

- Additionally, District Station Captains shall include a presentation and discussion of use of force/OIS to their monthly community meeting agendas twice per year. In order to allow for consistency in presentation and accountability, these meetings shall be held in the months of May and November. Station captains shall also include the information presented at the meetings in their Captain's email newsletter to the community during the same months. Specific feedback from the community shall be forwarded to the Commander of Community Engagement (CED). (For further details please refer to FOB Bureau Order 19-01).

Station Social Media

Each District Stations should have a strategy for engaging the community via social media. Each station should have either Twitter, Facebook, or Webpage where community engagement events as well as station news can be posted and viewed by the community.

Principal's Breakfast

Each District Station Captain should host a Principal's breakfast. This should be held at the beginning of the school year for each principal at every school in their district. This event can be held at the district station or local café/restaurants. This is done so that the District Captain and Officers can get to know each Principal in the district in order to build relationship with one another.

Meet the Beat Events

This event should be coordinated by the District Station Captains, Community Liaison Officer, and the Perspective Beat Officers. This should be held at least twice a year after each signup so that the local merchants, business owners, and community members can meet and get to know their Beat Officers. This event should be promoted via social media, announcements at community meetings, and literature that is given out by the Beat Officers.

SECTION III: PROBLEM-SOLVING

Community Policing Problem-Solving Strategy

The SFPD promotes the utilization of the S.A.R.A. model to address problems in the community. SFPD endorses a more community infused problem-solving approach that not only utilizes the S.A.R.A. model, but more importantly solicits and incorporates community input. A more community infused mindset is the new direction of policing across America, and SFPD is committed to this problem-solving mindset approach. In addition to community input regarding possible solutions for problems facing the community, the SFPD will use information and data provided from analysis of crime reports, Crime Analysis Unit, Crime Community Strategic Meeting, and other SFPD data analytics / electronic platforms (Teams App, Benchmark, Business Intelligence, etc.).

The S.A.R.A model provides an avenue to address community problems and includes the community in resolving problems. For more details, see Appendix B.

- **Scanning** – What is the problem?
- **Analysis** – What is contributing to the problem?
- **Response** – What can we do to improve the problem?
- **Assessment** – Did the response work?

Definition of Issue – A disorder or public safety complaint that:

- Can be significantly reduced, or solved with a single or minimal police response, and/or

- Is the sole jurisdiction of another public partner and has no relation to public safety, and/or
- Effects a single entity or person.

Examples include broken streetlights or loud music being produced by a cooperative source.

Definition of Problem – A complaint that is directly or indirectly related to public safety that is:

- Ongoing,
- Affects two or more people or entities, and
- Typically falls within policing responsibilities.

Examples include ongoing drug dealing in front of a liquor store and multiple calls for service by different parties to a location for family disturbances.

Community Engagement Problem-Solving Framework

The Department's goal is to have an engagement plan that is inclusive by incorporating the community as they strategize solutions for the problems they face. This engagement plan is designed for the purpose of investing in relationships with all communities, especially underrepresented communities, including those that are not supportive of the Department, to ensure that all community members are represented and feel that they are treated with fairness and equity by the Department.

The foundation of the San Francisco Police Department's Problem-Solving Program is the application of the SARA model. (It is important to note that historically when attempting to address ongoing problems, efforts normally slow or break down because of incomplete analysis conducted at the onset of planning. A thorough analysis and definition of problems allows participants, in their efforts to address problems, the opportunity to consider unique and surgical responses.

The Department encourages District Stations to utilize the Problem-Solving system approach provided in this order for all identified problems. Prior to the commencement of the Problem-Solving system approach, complete SFPD Form 509.

Any Officer, with express written approval from their Station Commanding Officer, can help solve community problems by using the community policing problem-solving framework.

- 1. Scan:** What is the problem?
 - a. Impact on public safety
 - b. Who is affected
 - c. Broad identification of goals by complainant and officer.
 - d. Collection and review of related reports, calls for service, photographs, etc.
- 2. Analysis:** What is contributing to the problem?
 - a. Identification and understanding of the conditions and what accompanies and precedes the problem. What other laws, ordinances, or policies can be utilized to help?
 - b. Evaluation of prior responses.
 - c. A thorough explanation of the data collected, and identification of additional data.

- d. Determine any best practice models related to the problem.
- e. Narrow the scope of the problem.
- f. Determine why the problem is occurring.
- 3. **Response:** What can we do to improve the problem?
 - a. Assemble working group.
 - b. Identify opportunities for intervention using the crime triangle.
 - c. Looking for non-police alternatives to work in conjunction with conventional police strategies.
 - d. Apply best practice models as appropriate.
 - e. Identify specific objectives (with measurable metrics), timelines, and assignments.
 - f. Execute the Problem-Solving response plan
- 4. **Assessment:** Did the response work?
 - a. Compare pre- and post-plan metrics.
 - b. Determine if objectives were met.
 - c. Identify new strategies based on information from assessment.
 - d. Document assessment in the Problem-Solving Report (memorandum).

Problem Intake

Use the *Problem-Solving Intake Form* (Appendix C) to start the process. Document their initial scan in the summary of the complaint. Officers are to document their initial Scan in the summary of the complaint. Officers are to include and describe in the “Summary of complaint”, any attachments (photos, documents etc..) that have been provided with the *Intake Form*.

Problem Review

Sergeants are to conduct a review of the *Administration Form - Problem-Solving Intake Form* or return it to the officer for further information.

Lieutenants are to ensure that the intake process is complete prior to forwarding it to the Captain.

Captain Evaluation and Assignment

The Captain is to review the *Administration Form - Problem-Solving Intake Form*.

1. Ensure that the identified problem meets the criteria for assignment as a Problem.
2. Log the Problem and issue a File Number (District Station/Unit, year, number [i.e. Co.B-24-001]).
3. Assign the Problem to a Problem-Solving Manager and provide the Problem-Solving Manager with a copy of the *Intake Form* and the *Problem-Solving Assignment Form*.
4. The Captain is to provide a roadmap of expectations, a due date not to exceed 30 calendar days from the date the initial complaint is received, and remain committed to supporting the Problem-Solving Manager throughout the process.

Upon Return of the S.A.R.A. Documentation to the Captain's Office

1. The Captain is to ensure that the S.A.R.A. elements are complete.
2. The Captain is to forward the S.A.R.A. Problem File to their appropriate Division Commander.

Division Commander

1. Review the project and distribute results to other divisions as appropriate.
2. Forward file to the Commanding Officer of CED for review and selection of problem-solving effort to be presented to the Community Policing Problem-Solving Oversight Committee.

Additional Resources

Officers and community members are encouraged to visit [ASU Center for Problem-Oriented Policing](#) website for additional information and resources related to best practices for problem-solving strategies.

Refer to the Appendix at the end of this Manual for the following:

- Appendix B for the S.A.R.A. Model
- Appendix C for the Administration Form - Problem-Solving Intake Form
- Appendix D for the Administration Form - Problem-Solving Assignment Form

Community Policing Tracking and Action Items/Issues Raised Forms

S.F. Police Department Community Policing Tracking Form (SFPD 509), and Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum (CCPAF) / Community Police Advisory Board (CPAB) - Action Items/Issues Raised Form (598A)

As part of this commitment, the department, through its Community Policing Strategic Plan, has made the collection and analysis of data related to community policing a priority. The Department's Problem-Solving Objectives are:

- To utilize a formalized problem-solving model across district stations.
- To collectively identify and develop responses to local issues and concerns with individuals, community-based organizations, and city services.
- To provide Officers the resources to connect individuals to resources when call for service are outside of their scope.

Defined below is the procedure that explains how to complete the SFPD Form 509 (S.F. Police Department Community Meeting and Issue Tracking Form) and how to route the Form 509 to the Community Engagement Division.

Form 509's purpose is tracking issues and concerns of members of the public, businesses, and community organizations throughout San Francisco. The 509 form is a record showing how the issues or concerns are addressed either by the Police Department or other city agencies. This form can be used as a reference, once closed, if the same issues or concerns arise again.

This form shall be used at District Stations for contact with members of the public and business owners when issues or concerns are reported, even if the issues or concerns are non-police related. Non-police related means the Police Department is not needed

in any manner to resolve a particular issue or concern. This multi-use form shall be completed when Department members are notified of an issue or concern from a community member during a community, neighborhood, or business organization meeting, **except** for issues raised during Community Police Advisory Boards (CPABs) and the Chiefs Community Police Advisory Forums (CCPAFs) meeting. For issues and concerns raised during CPAB and CCPAF meetings, members shall continue to utilize SFPD Form 598A.

Upon completion of Form 509, members shall forward the form to their station or Bureaus Community Liaison Officer (CLO) or Community Liaison Sergeant. CLO's or Community Liaison Sergeants will coordinate resolution to the identified issues, ensure 509 forms are completed, and upload the forms to their station/bureaus Problem-Solving Worksheet folder in the shared electronic platform.

All issues or concerns reported on a Form 509, regardless of if they are police related or non-police related, should have some form of resolution within 30 days from the date it was filled out. If the issues or concerns are police related and requires more than 30 days, members should review the issue with their unit CLO, CLO Sergeant, or reach out to the Community Liaison Unit for assistance. If the issues or concerns are non-police related and the appropriate City agency did not resolve the issues or concerns in 30 days, work with your unit CLO to determine if additional support is needed.

After being uploaded to the shared folders, the 509 forms will be reviewed by the Community Liaison Unit (CLU), and upon final completion of the problem-solving worksheet, the forms will be reviewed and signed off by the Sergeant, Lieutenant, and Captain of the Community Engagement Division. The goal of this review process is to not only ensure completeness of the forms, but to analyze the data received to learn from and improve the department's community policing outreach. CED will use the collected information provided in Form 509 for the Community Policing Annual Report.

CED/CLU will utilize monthly meetings with CLO's and CLO Sergeants to review and share best practices, provide additional support and guidance, and provide training as needed. CED/CLU will share best practices learned from these meetings with members and captains.

Any member requiring assistance with the Form 509 may contact the Community Liaison Unit at 415-558-5466 or SFPDCLU@sfgov.org.

Both forms are available through the SFPD Forms folder or through PowerDMS.

The above was referenced from and for more information, please refer to Department Notice: Instructions for Completing and Routing Community Policing Tracking Form SFPD 509.

SECTION IV: COMMUNITY POLICING REVIEW COMMITTEES

Internal Review Committee

During the month of January, the Commanding Officer of CED shall schedule a meeting to review the outcomes of Community Policing, Engagement, and Problem Solving. The Deputy Chief of the Field Operations Bureau and the Commanders of the Metro and Golden Gate Divisions shall select three district captains who engaged in successful and innovative community policing practices during the previous year to serve as peer-to-peer trainers to the other district station captains and lieutenants for the current year. Such trainers shall also seek local community input on effective strategies and future goals.

External Review Committees

The ~~Commander~~ Commanding Officer of the Community Engagement Division CED is responsible for coordinating the external Review Committee (ERC). This committee will oversee the Department's continued implementation of Community Policing and Problem-Solving, and will be responsible for reviewing the overall efforts on community policing in the Department ~~two committees consisting of the Community Policing and Problem-Solving Implementation Committee and the Community Policing and Problem-Solving Oversight Committee.~~

~~Community Policing and Problem-Solving Implementation Committee~~

~~This committee~~ The ERC will meet on a quarterly basis according to a regular schedule established by the Commanding Officer of CED, but not less than once a year and will be responsible for reviewing the Department's overall efforts on Community Policing and Problem-Solving.

In addition, the Committee ERC will be is responsible for:

- Discussing the current engagement strategies for effectiveness ~~by reviewing evaluations from community survey feedback and discussing programming.~~
- Discussing cross-organizational goals, current community policing and problem-solving plans and outcomes, and programming.
- ~~Regularly a~~ Assessing existing framework by remaining abreast of emerging community policing strategies and best practices employed by other law enforcement agencies.
- Developing new ideas or strategies.
- Recognizing the District Captains for following best practices in community engagement, and monitoring progress and growth.

The committee will consist of both Department and community members selected by the ~~chair of the committee in consultation with our city and community partners~~ Commanding Officer of CED.

Department representatives include:

- Commander of the Community Engagement Division, (Chair)

- Two District Station Captains (one from the Metro Division and one from the Golden Gate Division). Commanders of the Field Operations Bureau (Co-Chairs)
- Captain, Lieutenant, and Sergeant of the Community Engagement Division.
- A Community Liaison Officer (CLO) representative selected by the Department Captains.
- A Training Division representative (from FTO, CPT, etc.)

Community representatives may include:

- Representatives from the Department of Police Accountability, SF Safe, Department of Public Health, and Controller's Office.
- Two representatives from the Department's Community Police Advisory Board.
- Other community members as selected by the Commander of the Community Engagement Division.

Community Policing and Problem-Solving Oversight Committee

This committee will be responsible for overseeing community policing and problem-solving strategies and will focus on:

- Recognizing the District Captains engaged in best practices and utilizing them as peer trainers for other Captains.
 - Reviewing best practices and monitoring progress and growth.
 - Auditing District Stations to determine if the stations are meeting outcomes, effectiveness of the electronic platform, and the problem-solving efforts, following best practices in community engagement and formalized problem solving as outlined in the Community Policing and Problem-Solving Manual (DM2).
- The committee will consist of:

- Deputy Chief of the Field Operations Bureau and Commander of the Community Engagement Division (Co-Chairs).
- Commanders of the Field Operations Bureau personnel
- Captains from the Community Engagement Division, Metro and Golden Gate Divisions (Rotated quarterly).
- Lieutenant of the Community Engagement Division.
- A representative from the District Attorney's Office.
- Representative from training division (FTO, CPT, etc.)
- Community Stakeholders to serve a 1-year term as designated by the co-chairs.

The Oversight Committee will be responsible for inviting District Station Captains in on a rotating basis, as an accountability measure, to determine specifically the goals, strategies, and outcomes of formalized Community Oriented Policing and Problem-Solving and to document best practices for later use.

The above was referenced from and for more information, please refer to DGO 1.08 – Community Policing.

SECTION V: DATA COLLECTION, METRICS, AND SURVEYS

Community Engagement Tracking and Data Collection

District Station Captains shall digitally track all community engagement activities via standardized electronic templates provided by CED.

All Department sponsored events shall collect data, which includes feedback from the community, to help measure the effectiveness of our community policing and engagement strategies. This data will be used during internal and external review of the Department's community policing and community engagement practices.

The results of this information should be included in the Department's Annual Report on community policing and posted on the Department webpage for public viewing.

In addition, whenever feasible, the Department should produce periodic community surveys and provide a mechanism for community feedback via the Department's website. Results of community surveys should be posted on the Department's webpage.

Internal Tracking of Community Engagement Events

The Department shall provide a shared calendar both externally to the community and internally to Department members which lists upcoming Department sponsored events. The internal calendar should track information related to the planning and after-action of an event.

Community Policing Metrics

The Community Engagement Division shall utilize the Community Policing performance objectives (*Community Policing Strategic Plan*) as well as qualitative and quantitative success criteria from each station, unit, and detail. CED will share the performance results across the Department and Community on an annual basis as stated in the Department's Annual Community Policing report.

The goals and performance measures related to Community Policing for all stations, units, and details will be re-evaluated on a continual basis for review and improvement. Changes and revisions will be incorporated into the *Community Policing Strategic Plan*, DGO 1.08, and this manual.

Surveys

The Department has created a community survey link on the Department's website to obtain valuable community feedback on the effectiveness of our community engagement events and programs which will assist the Department in the development of our strategies to meet the needs of the community. Community surveys advance a data collection and metrics plan to ensure accountability on a review process to determine effectiveness and meets the Department's Community Policing Strategic

Initiative of Measure and Communicate by creating a communication channel between the Department and the community where information and feedback is received and shared. The Department will utilize this feedback to enhance the Department's community policing and problem-solving strategies. The purpose of this order is to outline the process of review and tracking of community survey results for dissemination to Department units in support of their community engagement strategies.

Survey Policy

The Commanding Officer of CED's Youth and Community Engagement Unit (YCEU) shall oversee the process of conducting, monitoring, and analyzing community surveys. The YCEU Sergeant and assigned community engagement analyst shall liaison with Department Bureaus and District Stations to support their annual community policing plans through the facilitation of surveys and dissemination of survey results regarding hosted events and programs. Survey results will be used to assist in the development of crime prevention and community policing strategies.

Survey Procedures

The YCEU Sergeant and Community Engagement Analyst will coordinate with Department Bureaus and District Stations on a regular basis to discuss facilitation of community surveys for events or programs. The YCEU Sergeant and assigned analyst shall review, analyze, and share survey results of events and programs and produce a summary report to be shared on a monthly basis. The survey results will be shared via the following platforms:

- Community Engagement shared file located on active directory desktop
- Monthly meeting with District Stations Community Liaison Officers
- Monthly Field Operations Bureau meeting with District Captains

Community survey results will be incorporated for accountability in the Department's Annual Report on Community Policing and will be posted on the Department's webpage for public viewing. The Community Engagement Division will provide the annual report to the Internal Review Committee according to DGO 1.08.

Survey Results

Visit SFPD's webpage. Go to "Community Surveys" under the Community page.

REFERENCES

1. Arizona State University Center for Problem-Oriented Policing - [ASU Center for Problem-Oriented Policing](#)

2. California Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training, Basic Course Workbook Series, Learning Domain 3, Principled Policing in the Community, Version 5.1
3. Chief's Directive - Chief's Community Police Advisory Forum
4. Community Engagement Division Unit Order # 20-01; Youth and Community Engagement Unit; Youth Programs
5. Community Engagement Division Unit Order # 21-01; Youth and Community Engagement Unit; Community Surveys
6. Community Engagement Division Unit Order # 21-02; Community Engagement Strategy Involving Historically Underrepresented Communities
7. Department Bulletin 18-099 / The San Francisco Police Department Strategic Plan 1.0 Rollout and First Steps
8. Department Bulletin 19-165 / Community Policing Strategic Plan
9. Department General Order 1.08 / Community Policing
10. Department General Order 3.09 / Department Awards
11. Department General Order 5.20 / Language Access Services for Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons
12. Department Manual-23 / Community Ambassador Program
13. Department Manual-24 / Community Police Advisory Boards (CPAB)
14. Department Notice 21-019 / Annual Community Policing Strategy
15. Department Notice 21-028 / SFPD Diversity Strategic Plan
16. Department Notice 21-056 / Instructions for Completing and Routing Community Policing Tracking form SFPD 509
17. Department Notice 22 – 049 / DGO 3.09 "Department Awards"
18. Department Notice 22 – 051 / Safe Place Program
19. Department Notice 23 – 161 / Pink Patch Project to Support Breast Cancer Awareness
20. Department Notice 24 – 012 / Community Liaison Unit
21. Final Report of The President's Task Force On 21st Century Policing
22. FOB Bureau Order 19-01 / District Captains' Bi-annual Community Meetings on Use of Force (UOF) and Officer Involved Shootings (OIS)
23. FOB Bureau Order #20-01 / District Station Captains; 21st Century Policing discussions for Captains to have at their community meetings and forums
24. FOB Bureau Order #20-02 / District Station Captains; Newsletter Requirements
25. FOB Bureau Order #20-03 / District Station Captains' Bi-Annual Community Meeting on Officer Conduct, the Citizen Complaint Process and Bias-Free Policing
26. FOB Unit Order #20-04 / District Station Captains; Annual Community Policing Strategic Plan
27. FOB Bureau Order #20-05 / District Station Captains Quarterly Meeting Identifying DPA Complaint Allegation Trends and Remedying Step
28. SFPD Annual Community Policing Plan – PowerPoint
29. SFPD Community Policing Strategic Plan
30. SFPD Diversity Strategic Plan
31. SFPD Racial Equity & Inclusion Action Plan / Phase 1
32. SFPD Strategy 1.0

APPENDIX

PROPOSED

Appendix A

PROPOSED

Appendix B. S.A.R.A. Problem-Solving Process

Any Officer, with express written approval from their Station Commanding Officer, can help solve community problems by using the community policing problem-solving framework.

- 1) **Scan:** What is the problem?
 - a. Impact on public safety
 - b. Who is affected.
 - c. Broad identification of goals by both complainant and officer
 - d. Collection and review of related reports, calls for service, photographs, etc.
- 2) **Analysis:** What is contributing to the problem?
 - a. Identification and understanding of the conditions and circumstances that precedes the problem. What other laws, ordinances, policies can be utilized to help
 - b. Evaluation of prior responses
 - c. A thorough exploration of the data collected, and identification of additional data
 - d. Determine any best practice models related to the problem
 - e. Narrow scope of problem
 - f. Determine why the problem is occurring
- 3) **Response:** What can we do to improve the problem?
 - a. Assemble working group
 - b. Identify opportunities for intervention using the crime triangle
 - c. Look for non-police alternatives to work in conjunction with conventional police strategies
 - d. Apply best practice models as appropriate
 - e. Identify specific objectives (with measurable metrics), timelines, and assignments
 - f. Execute Problem Solving Response plan
- 4) **Assessment:** Did the response work?
 - a. Compare pre and post response plan metrics
 - b. Determine if objectives were met
 - c. Identify new strategies based on information from assessment
 - d. Document assessment in the Problem-Solving Report (Memorandum).

Appendix C. Administration Form - Problem-Solving Intake Form



Problem Solving Intake Form



Taken By: _____ Star: _____

Date: _____

Time: _____

Location: _____

Method of complaint (verbal, email, police generated): _____

Complainant: _____

Summary of complaint. _____

Attachments: Yes _____ No _____

Sergeant Reviewed: _____ Star: _____ Date: _____

Lieutenant approved: _____ Star: _____ Date: _____

Captain Received: _____ Date: _____

Captain's staff only

Problem Solving File #: _____ (i.e. Co.B-24-001)

Assigned to: _____

Due Date: _____

The assignment of Problem-Solving Manager is to occur within 7 days of initial intake. A copy of this form is to accompany Problem Solving Assignment Form.

NOTE: Captains are to forward the Problem File to their appropriate Division Commander. Division Commander is to forward the Problem File to the Commander of CED for review and selection of problem-solving effort to be presented to the Community Policing Problem Solving Oversight Committee.

PROPOSED

Appendix D. Administration Form - Problem-Solving Assignment Form



Problem Solving Assignment Form



File Number: _____ (i.e. Co.B-24-001)

Problem Solving Manager: _____

Date of Initial Intake: _____

Date Assigned: _____

Notes to Problem Solving Manager:

Due Date: _____ (30 calendar days from the date of the initial complaint received)

Captain: _____ Date: _____